I'On Assembly Board of Trustees Meeting March 18, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes

Members Present: Tom O'Brien, Julie Hussey, Lon Waggoner, Bob Adams, and Roy Rathbun

Management Company: Emily Simpson & Mary James

Absent: Stephen Wood

Homeowner Forum: Bruce Kinney, 94 W. Shipyard; Tom Graham, 51 Krier; Shannon Runquist, 18 Isle of Hope; Simon O'Shea, 79 Hopetown; Antonia Fokas, 34 Fernandina; Amy Sage, 63 Joggling; Dennis Jordan, 214 N. Shelmore; Beth Maas, 115 Civitas; Ed Clem, 167 E. Shipyard; Dick Bondy, 107 Civitas; and Barabara Adams, 35 Eastlake.

Simon O'Shea thanked the Board for their support of the St. Patrick's Day event. He expressed his support of Tom's comments regarding the homeowner forum policy. He went on to discuss the amphitheater and expressed that the Board should review all the facts and workings from the previous group who spent a lot of time on the amphitheater. Simon relayed that the subcommittee received and reviewed drawings from LFK architects the week before the board meeting. The committee also met with a contractor on site at the amphitheater and should have a quote to share with the Board within the next 2 weeks.

Amy Sage asked a question about the homeowner forum policy, sharing that she thought this was always the policy that was in place. Julie responded that it has been slightly changed.

Barbara Adams joined to share her thoughts on the possible installation of reader boards, specifically the one on Eastlake Road. She expressed concerns regarding the heavy vehicular and foot traffic on Eastlake and conveyed her thoughts that the reader board could be dangerous here. She also stated that numerous of her neighbors on Eastlake feel the same way. Barbara asked why the reader boards are needed with all the other communications we regularly send via email blasts and posted signs. She also asked how the reader board would be maintained and who would oversee posting events. She also asked if it would be visible from outside the neighborhood and questioned why events would be advertised this way. She asked for more discussion on the placement of the sign boards before they are approved.

Antonia expressed that the Trust often receives complaints from neighbors saying that they did not hear about an event going on even with the email blast that are sent. The hope is that the reader boards would provide another form of communication to residents who might not be reading the email blasts.

Bruce Kinney called into the meeting to listen in on the discussions about the amphitheater. He shared his desire for the amphitheater to be rebuilt the way it was. He expressed the need for it to be an aesthetic design that incorporates low country design and that any proposal for the new use of the common area should reach a high bar. He stated that it does not seem necessary to build a structure when the Trust can use a tent. He then read Article VI-104 from the covenants regarding damage to the commons. He also stated that he has shared 40-50 emails/letters from residents to the Board who wanted it built back the way it was. Simon reiterated that the subcommittee is providing all facts to the Board so that the Board can make the best decision for the neighborhood with all the information they have.

Call to Order: 6:28PM by Tom O'Brien

Approval of Minutes:

Bob made a motion to approve the February 8, 2024 I'On Assembly Meeting Minutes along with the February 21, 2024 and March 4, 2024 Special Meeting Minutes. Roy Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

President's Report:

Tom gave a brief report to homeowners surrounding the overall culture of the neighborhood and provided some history on other projects that caused some disagreements within the neighborhood before they were completed, such as the sports court. Tom expressed that the intention of the Board is to represent all 762 homeowners the best it can while recognizing that it does not have the funds to satisfy all of the many different wants and needs around the community. His hope is to send another community wide survey to prepare for long-term plans for the neighborhood.

Lastly, Tom provided owners with a copy of the homeowner's forum policy and reiterated the points in the policy to those attending the meeting to have productive conversations.

Bob made a motion to approve the amended homeowner forum policy. Lon Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Amenity Report:

Tom responded to comments about the amphitheater which came up during the homeowner forum, expressing that he understands all of the different thoughts on this project. The project has been at a standstill for far too long and it is time for action. He acknowledged the importance of having an accurate cost estimate. The survey that was sent to the community regarding possible structures for the amphitheater should have been done differently seeing that there were no cost estimates for those potential structures. He recognized that other high priority projects, such as the bulkheads, will be putting demands on the budget. Tom asked Simon to provide quotes for the board to review before the next board meeting. No decision will be made until those numbers are provided.

Treasurer Report:

Bob reported the need to follow the reserve study consultant's annual funding recommendation and transfer \$280,049 from the operating budget to the reserve fund.

Bob made a motion to transfer \$280,049 from the operating account to the reserve fund. Lon Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Bob then provided an update on equity investments. He stated that all is going well except for the Schwab Windhaven fund investment which has underperformed. Morgan Stanley met with the finance committee and provided the team with buy and sell recommendations. After discussion, it was decided to sell the Windhaven funds (other than SPY and QQQ holdings in that fund) and add to SPY, QQQ, Vanguard Mid-Cap, VO Small-Cap VB, and International VXUS.

Bob made a motion to sell the below investments and add to the below. Roy Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Add \$135K to SPY holdings Add \$100K to QQQ holdings Buy \$75K of VO Buy \$50K of VB Buy \$50K of VXUS Keep current level of investment in BRKB

At the last finance committee meeting, Erik Glaser, the Assembly's CPA, provided the draft audit to the committee. He relayed that the Assembly is in very good standing.

Lastly, Bob stated that the committee will continue working on the 2024 draft reserve fund expenses and capital expenditures and will be brought to the Board for approval once completed.

Landscape and Infrastructure Report:

Roy reported on several items that have been completed since the last meeting. He relayed that The Charleston Tree Company has completed the right of way tree pruning for the half of the neighborhood that was not done last year. He also stated that the Spring/Summer annuals have been approved and that the entrance pillars on Lowcountry Blvd. and Eastlake Road were pressure washed.

Roy went on to acknowledge the ongoing concerns regarding the algae in the lakes and canals and the ongoing work with Ruppert Landscaping's aquatics division to monitor and treat the lakes and canals. He also stated that the committee continues to work with our landscapers on reducing the reliance of carbon-based machinery.

He went on to speak on the Westlake path drainage concerns and the maintenance of the marsh trail. The gravel continues to run off the path during heavy rains at the top northwest corner of Westlake, and the Committee received a proposal to install new steel edging along with a plating bed to help soak up excess water.

Roy made a motion to approve the proposal for \$3,800 for the Westlake edging and bed enhancement. Julie Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Roy relayed that an inspection was done on the lakes and canals' bulkheads and the committee received the updated bulkhead inspection report. The report shows some areas of the bulkhead around Eastlake that are showing significant bowing and repairs are needed. The inspector provided us with four different options for repair and replacement. Emily reached out for a preliminary quote from the engineering company for option D, which is for the full replacement of the wall between the South canal and the end of the wall along the East bank of Eastlake. Their rough Project Management Estimate is \$48,000 for engineering drawing, bidding the project, and overseeing construction. Their Construction Cost Estimate is \$1 million dollars for 1,100 linear feet at an average of \$900-\$1100 per linear foot. The landscape committee will be receiving 3 quotes on options B and D as well. All of the quotes will be reviewed with scrutiny for the board to make a decision at a future meeting. Bob noted the life of the bulkheads and the need to plan ahead and come up with a plan for scheduling and planning this expenditure. When asked if the TOMP has been engaged, Roy responded that they will be contacted after the neighborhood has a firm plan in place.

Lastly, Roy relayed we will be working with Ruppert Landscaping on testing the proposed gravel for 50-75 feet of the marsh trail before approving the installation of gravel along other areas of the trail.

Roy made a motion to approve Charlie Miller as a member of the Landscape & Infrastructure Committee. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Covenants Report:

Lon made a motion to increase the fining of a property from \$100 per week to \$200 per week. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Lon then shared the draft signage policy with the Board. It was decided to remove language about all signs since the CCR's only point directly to rules being provided for political signage.

Lon made a motion to approve the signage policy with removal of last sentence. Motion Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

IDC Liaison Report:

Tom made a motion to appoint David Thompson as an alternate homeowner IDC member representative. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Communications Committee:

Julie made a motion to appoint Paula Shugart to the Communications Committee. Roy Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Julie went on to discuss improving ways we communicate to the neighborhood with the installation of reader boards. She stated that the hope was for one to be installed at North Shelmore and one to be installed along Eastlake. She shared the pictures which were included in the Board packet with the opinion that white lettering on black was more subtle than black lettering on a white background. The quote includes the installation of uplighting to be more visible in the evening. The cost would be split with the I'On Trust.

Bob volunteered to walk to the houses on Eastlake and survey the neighbor's thoughts that live on Eastlake. He reiterated that numerous neighbors along Eastlake are against the installation of a sign on their street mainly due to major traffic concerns. Tom relayed that the signs that are put out for First Fridays and Potluck events seem to help significantly. After further discussion, it was decided to start with the installation of one reader board at the entrance of North Shelmore, replacing the current neighborhood sign. An additional sign on Eastlake will not be considered until the board has seen the effectiveness of a reader board in the Square.

Julie made a motion to install one reader board with uplighting at the entrance of North Shelmore. Lon Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed unanimously.

Secretary: No Report

Other Business:

There being no further business to come before the Board of Trustees, the meeting adjourned at 7:03pm. The next meeting will be held on April, 2024 at 6:00PM.

Respectfully submitted by______ Julie Hussey, Board Secretary